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COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

NIHAT DENIZ BAYRAMOGLU, ESQ. (Nevada. Bar No. 14030) 
deniz@bayramoglu-legal.com  
GOKALP BAYRAMOGLU, ESQ. (Nevada Bar No. 15500)  
gokalp@bayramoglu-legal.com  
BAYRAMOGLU LAW OFFICES LLC 
1540 West Warm Springs Road, Suite 100 
Henderson, Nevada 89014 
Telephone: (702) 462-5973 
Facsimile:  (702) 553-3404 

Attorneys for Plaintiff, 
Iron Bird, LLC 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEVADA 

Iron Bird, LLC, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

UAV Systems International Incorporated 
(3DR), 

Defendant. 

Case No. 1:25-cv-00312

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND 
FOR JURY TRIAL  

Plaintiff, Iron Bird, LLC (“Plaintiff”), through its counsel the Bayramoglu Law Offices, 

LLC, hereby complains and alleges against Defendant, UAV Systems International Incorporated 

(3DR) (“Defendant”) as follows:    

I. NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is an action for patent infringement under 35 U.S.C. § 101 et seq.,

specifically, 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, 283, 284, and 285. Defendant has made, used, offered for sale, 

sold, and/or imported, at least the products that has infringed and continues to infringe Plaintiff’s 

rights in U.S. Patent No. 7,400,950 (the ‘950 Patent) entitled, “Optical sensing system for 

stabilizing machine-controllable vehicles. 
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COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
 

 

II. THE PARTIES 

2. Plaintiff, Iron Bird, LLC is a corporation organized and existing under the laws 

of Delaware that maintains its principal place of business at 261 West 35th Street, Suite 1003, 

New York, New York 10001.  

3. Defendant, UAV Systems International Incorporated (3DR) is a corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of Nevada that maintains an established place of business 

at 1421 North Jones Boulevard, PMB 232, Las Vegas, Nevada 89108.  

III. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

4. This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338(a) as they arise under the Patent Statute at 35 U.S.C. § 101 et seq., 28 

U.S.C. § 1338(a)-(b) and 28 U.S.C. § 1331. 

5. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because it is a Nevada 

corporation with its principal place of business located at 1421 North Jones Boulevard, PMB 

232, Las Vegas, Nevada 89108. 

6. Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b)(1) and 1400(b) 

because Defendant resides in this judicial district.  

IV. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

7. Plaintiff is the assignee of all right, title, and interest in United States Patent No. 

7,400,950 (the “Patent-in-Suit); including all rights to enforce and prosecute actions for 

infringement and to collect damages for all relevant times against infringers of the Patent-in-Suit. 

Accordingly, Plaintiff possesses the exclusive right and standing to prosecute the present action 

for infringement of the Patent-in-Suit by Defendant. 

8. The ‘950 Patent is entitled, “Optical sensing system and system for stabilizing 

machine-controllable vehicles,” and issued 2008-07-15. The application leading to the ‘950 

Patent was filed on 2005-03-21. A true and correct copy of the ‘950 Patent is attached hereto as  

Exhibit 1 and incorporated herein by reference.  

9. Plaintiff is the assignee of the entire right, title, and interest in the '950 Patent. 
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COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
 

 

10. Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe the ‘950 Patent by making, sell, 

and offering for sale in the United States, including within this judicial district. 

11. Upon information and belief, Defendant has been, and is, inducing infringement 

of the ‘950 Patent by actively and knowingly inducing others to make, use, sell, offer for sale, 

or import, at least, the Accused Products that embody or use one or more of the inventions 

claimed in the ‘950 Patent.  

12. Upon information and belief, Defendant markets and sells, at least, the infringed 

products through e-commerce channels, brick-and-mortar stores, and through direct sales that 

infringe on one or more of the inventions claimed in the ‘950 Patent. 

13. Upon information and belief, Defendant has been contributorily infringing, and 

continues to contributorily infringe, the ‘950 Patent by selling or offering for sale, knowing them 

to be especially made or especially adapted for practicing one or more of the inventions claimed 

in the ‘950 Patent and which are not a staple article or commodity of commerce suitable for non-

infringing use.  

14. Upon information and belief, Defendant knew or should have known of the ‘950 

Patent, including the inventions claimed therein, prior to designing, manufacturing, and selling, 

of the infringed products in the United States market, and that there is no substantial non-

infringing use of said products.   

15. Upon information and belief, Defendant has known the existence of the ‘950 

Patent, and its acts of infringement have been in willful disregard of the rights granted therein 

without any reasonable basis to believe it had the right to engage in the infringing conduct alleged 

herein. 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

INFRINGEMENT OF THE ‘950 PATENT  

16. Plaintiff hereby repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation set forth in 

Paragraphs 1 through 15, above, as if the same were more fully set forth herein.  

17. Defendant has been and continued to directly infringe one or more claims of the  
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‘950 Patent in the United States, including within this judicial district in violation of 35 U.S.C. 

§ 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, selling, and/or importing, without limitation, at least 

the Defendant products identified in the charts incorporated into this Claim below (among the 

“Exemplary Defendant Products”) that infringe at least the exemplary claims of the 950’ Patent 

also identified in the charts incorporated into this Claim below (the “Exemplary ’950 Patent 

Claims”) literally or by the doctrine of equivalents. On information and belief, numerous other 

devices that infringe the claims of the ’950 Patent have been made, used, sold, imported, and 

offered for sale by Defendant and/or its customers.  

18. Defendant has been, and is, inducing infringement of the ‘950 Patent by actively 

and knowingly inducing others to make, use, sell, offer for sale, import, or use one or more of 

the inventions claimed in the ‘950 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). 

19. Upon information and belief, Defendant has been and is inducing infringement of 

the '950 Patent by actively and knowingly inducing others to make, use, sell, offer for sale, import, 

or use the one or more of the inventions claimed in the '950 Patent, which are not a staple article 

or commodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use, in violation of 35 U.S.C. 

§ 271(c).  

20. Upon information and belief, Defendant has been, and is, infringing, contributing 

the infringement of, and inducing the infringement of the ‘950 Patent by making, using, selling, 

offering for sale in the United States, importing into the United States, or use one or more of the 

inventions claimed in the ‘950 Patent.  

21. Upon information and belief, Defendant has known of the existence of the '950 

Patent, and its acts of infringement have been willful and in disregard for the '950 Patent, without 

any reasonable basis for believing that it had a right to engage in the infringing conduct. 

22. Defendant’s infringement has been, and continues to be, knowing, intentional, 

and willful. 
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23. Defendant’s acts of infringement of the ‘950 Patent have caused, and continue to  

cause, Plaintiff damages for which it entitled to compensation pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284,  

subject to proof at trial.  

24. Defendant’s acts of infringement of the ‘950 Patent have caused, and continue to 

cause, Plaintiff immediate and irreparable harm, for which it has no adequate remedy at law, 

unless such acts are enjoined by this Court pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 283. 

25. This case is exceptional, and therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to an award of 

attorneys’ fees pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests the Court enter judgment in its favor and 

against Defendant as follows: 

26. Entry of an Order adjudging that Defendant has directly infringed, actively 

induced infringement of, and/or contributorily infringed the ‘950 Patent in violation of one or 

more provisions of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a)-(c); 

27. Entry of an Order requiring Defendant to pay Plaintiff damages for infringement 

of the ‘950 Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 274; 

28. Entry of an Order requiring Defendant to pay enhanced damages up to three times 

the amount of actual damages awarded to Plaintiff pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284; 

29. Entry of an Order awarding Plaintiff its reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees 

pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285, or as otherwise permitted by code, statute or rule.; 

30. Entry of an Order temporarily, preliminarily, and/or permanently enjoining 

Defendant, its employees, agents, officers, directors, attorneys, successors, affiliates, 

subsidiaries, and assigns, and all others acting in active concert and participation with any of the 

foregoing persons or entities, from infringing, contributing to the infringement of, or inducing 

the infringement of the ‘950 Patent; and 

31. Entry of an Order awarding such other and further relief as the Court deems just 

and proper.  
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COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

JURY DEMAND 

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues triable by a jury in this matter. 

Respectfully submitted, 

BAYRAMOGLU LAW OFFICES LLC 

Dated: February 17, 2025             By: /s/ Nihat Deniz Bayramoglu 
Nihat Deniz Bayramoglu, Esq. (NV Bar No. 14030) 
Gokalp Bayramoglu, Esq. (NV Bar No. 15500)  
BAYRAMOGLU LAW OFFICES LLC 
Attorneys for Plaintiff,  
Iron Bird, LLC 
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NIHAT DENIZ BAYRAMOGLU, ESQ. (Nevada. Bar No. 14030) 
deniz@bayramoglu-legal.com 
GOKALP BAYRAMOGLU, ESQ. (Nevada Bar No. 15500)  
gokalp@bayramoglu-legal.com 
BAYRAMOGLU LAW OFFICES LLC 
1540 West Warm Springs Road, Suite 100 
Henderson, Nevada 89014 
Telephone:  702.462.5973 
Facsimile:   702.553.3404 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEVADA 

Iron Bird, LLC, 
 
  Plaintiff, 
v. 
 
UAV Systems International Incorporated 
(3DR), 
 
  Defendant. 

Case No.: 2:25-cv-00312 
 
INDEX OF EXHIBITS TO COMPLAINT 
AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL  

 

EXHIBIT DESCRIPTION 

1 US Patent No. 7,400,950 

     

      Respectfully submitted, 

      BAYRAMOGLU LAW OFFICES LLC 

 Dated: February 17, 2025  By: /s/ Nihat Deniz Bayramoglu  
Nihat Deniz Bayramoglu (NV Bar No. 6730) 
1540 West Warm Springs Road Ste. 100 
Henderson, NV 89014 
deniz@bayramoglu-legal.com  
1540 West Warm Springs Road, Suite 100 
Henderson, Nevada 89014 
Telephone:  702.462.5973 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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INDEX OF EXHIBITS TO COMPLAINT 
 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, hereby certify that on February 17, 2025, I electronically filed the foregoing with the 

Court using the CM/ECF system, and thereby delivered the foregoing by electronic means to all 

counsel of record.  

 
By: /s/ Nihat Deniz Bayramoglu   
Nihat Deniz Bayramoglu 
Bayramoglu Law Offices LLC 
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 AO 120 (Rev. 08/10)  

TO:
Mail Stop 8

Director of the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office

P.O. Box 1450 
Alexandria, VA 22313-1450

REPORT ON THE

FILING OR DETERMINATION OF AN

ACTION REGARDING A PATENT OR

TRADEMARK

In Compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 290 and/or 15 U.S.C. § 1116 you are hereby advised that a court action has been

filed in the U.S. District Court on the following

G Trademarks or G Patents.    ( G the patent action involves 35 U.S.C. § 292.):

DOCKET NO. DATE FILED U.S. DISTRICT COURT

PLAINTIFF DEFENDANT

PATENT OR

TRADEMARK NO.

DATE OF PATENT 

OR TRADEMARK
HOLDER OF PATENT OR TRADEMARK

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

In the above—entitled case, the following patent(s)/ trademark(s) have been included:

DATE INCLUDED INCLUDED BY

G Amendment G Answer G Cross Bill G Other Pleading

PATENT OR

TRADEMARK NO.

DATE OF PATENT 

OR TRADEMARK
HOLDER OF PATENT OR TRADEMARK

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

In the above—entitled case, the following decision has been rendered or judgement issued:

DECISION/JUDGEMENT

CLERK (BY) DEPUTY CLERK DATE

Copy 1—Upon initiation of action, mail this copy to Director     Copy 3—Upon termination of action, mail this copy to Director

Copy 2—Upon filing document adding patent(s), mail this copy to Director     Copy 4—Case file copy

✔

4/29/2024

Red Cat Holdings, Inc.

7,400,950 7/15/2008
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ask@bayramoglu-legal.comSystem Claim: 13

US7400950B2 TEAL 2 
13. System for
controlling at least a
roll attitude for
stabilizing hovering
flight of an airborne
object, wherein an
opto electronical
sensing means is
provided for
obtaining an optical
flow measurement
signal from a section
of a ground image,

The  accused  product  practices  a  system  for  controlling  at  least  a  roll  attitude  for
stabilizing  hovering  flight  (e.g.,  TEAL  2)  including  dual  axis  gimbal  that  can  capture
images in any of the axes (Roll, Pitch, and Yaw). The said evidence includes optoelectronic
sensing means (= electro-optical) camera and thermal Infrared camera sensor (=Hardon
640R) for capturing images/videos. The thermal infrared camera is used for night vision
and for capturing thermal signatures.

As shown below, the said evidence uses optoelectronic means (e.g., EO/IR camera) for
capturing ground images to calculate the distance between the airborne object (= drone)
and the potential obstacles, also it includes multiple modes to track the selected subject.
If the subject moves, the position of the airborne object also changes and with the help of
the imaging system the current position of the subject is kept updated till  the subject
stops. The said evidence uses a time of flight sensor to precisely measure the distance
from the ground to stabilize the airborne object (= drone) while tracking the target.

The  said  evidence uses  algorithms for  object  tracking  or  target  tracking  and detects
whether the object is a vehicle, animal, or other thing based on thermal signatures.  
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the system 
comprising an 
electronic circuit 
adapted for 
generating from the 
optical flow signal of 
at least a lateral 
movement direction, 
at least in part, a 
control signal in the 
manner of a negative
feedback loop

The accused product comprises an electronic circuit in the airborne object (e.g., Drone).
The said evidence includes EO/IR camera or thermal infrared camera, the camera on the
front of the drone is used to capture the images, and the time of flight sensor on the
bottom is used to assist in the landing of airborne object (=drone) and also for optical
positioning of the drone when Tracking the position of the selected target.

As shown below, the said evidence supports multiple modes for target tracking and also a
thermal infrared camera (=Hardon 640R) for detecting thermal signatures. The airborne
object (=drone) keeps tracking the target until the target stops, and hovers around the
target. The image sensor captures the images of the subject, whereas thermal signatures
are captured by thermal infrared sensors that precisely track and detect target objects
based on their thermal signature and all these data are transferred to the controller based
on the images the controller calculates and changes the position of the airborne object.
The controller based on the calculation sends a control signal (=instruction/command) to
an airborne object (=drone). The airborne object based on the signal changes its position
and in this manner, a negative feedback loop will  be generated from the optical flow
signal corresponding to the lateral movement of the point of interest at the ground.

https://tealdrones.com/wp-content/uploads/
2023/06/Teal2-OnePager-Digital.pdf
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 https://youtu.be/teTIqVPz58g?t=19  https://youtu.be/teTIqVPz58g?
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t=22 

https://youtu.be/
iVEOzE9yEX4?t=71 

https://youtu.be/5rUcRxaNP1Q?t=26 

https://youtu.be/teTIqVPz58g?t=26 
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https://dronesurveyservices.com/how-do-you-make-a-drone-go-left-and-right/
#:~:text=The%20primary%20components%20responsible%20for,and%20direction%20of
%20the%20propellers. 

the generated The  accused  product  (=TEAL  2)  comprises  optoelectronic  sensing  means  (=  EO/IR
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control signal being 
adapted for driving 
an actuating element
affecting roll 
movements of the 
airborne object.

camera). The camera on the front of the airborne object (=drone) is used to capture the
images and the time of flight sensor on the bottom is used for positioning the drone when
tracking the selected target. The camera captures images/video that is transferred to the
controller,  the controller based on the images maintains a specific height, speed, and
angle for capturing images of the target subject.

As shown below, the said evidence includes actuating means (=brushless motors) and
propellers. The opposite two propellers rotate in a clockwise direction whereas the other
two propellers rotate in counter clockwise direction. The airborne object (=drone) when
tracking the targeted subject, captures the images and also captures thermal signature
for precise tracking during night operations. The images are sent to the controller that
uses algorithms and performs calculations, based on the calculations the airborne object
maintains a specific distance from the target.  The controller based on the calculation
sends a control signal (=instruction) to the airborne object (=drone). Motors based on the
signal change the speed and direction of rotation of the propellers and achieve stabilized
lateral movement.
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   https://tealdrones.com/wp-content/uploads/
2023/06/Teal2-OnePager-Digital.pdf  

https://tealdrones.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/60083-MK1.5-Operator-Manual-REV-
A.pdf
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12)  Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff(s)

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12)  Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

’ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

’ I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

’ I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

’ I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

’ Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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